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2025
114,742,895 100.0
5,633 0.0
114,748,528
( 16,360 ) 100.0
2025
10,784,017,990 100.0
~972,490 0.0
10,783, 045,500 100.0
2025
2,435,533 100.0
212 0.0
2,435,745
(% ) 100.0
2025
18,131,321 100.0
1,474 0.0
18,132,795
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2024 2025
2023 12 31 62,825 8,957 10.89 1,553
2024 12 31 135,958 19,384 10.75 1,533
2024 120,851 17,230 11.20 1,597
131,971 18,815 11.25 1,604
140,494 20,030 11.23 1,601
134,605 19,191 10.39 1,481
136,500 19,461 10.50 1,497
10 135,336 19,295 10.60 1,511
11 133,565 19,042 10.67 1,521
12 135,958 19,384 10.75 1,533
2025 129,412 18,450 10.82 1,543
127,482 18,175 10.80 1,540
126,605 18,050 10.92 1,557
114,749 16,360 10.49 1,496
2023 12 31 17,014,811 1,027
2024 12 31 14,587,152 971
2024 19,588,970 1,032
19,997,061 1,032
19,608,930 1,026
17,398,026 953
16,354,618 959
10 15,805,524 964
11 15,133,735 967
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12 14,587,152 971

2025 14,002,474 973
13,528,841 969

12,690,039 976

10,783,046 936

2023 12 31 2,823 458 10.64 1,725
2024 12 31 3,480 564 10.35 1,678
2024 3,405 552 10.87 1,763
3,429 556 10.90 1,768

3,534 573 10.87 1,763

3,402 552 10.05 1,630

3,422 555 10.15 1,646

10 3,485 565 10.22 1,657

11 3,505 568 10.28 1,667

12 3,480 564 10.35 1,678

2025 3,432 557 10.40 1,687
3,422 555 10.37 1,682

2,540 412 10.47 1,698

2,436 395 10.04 1,628

2023 12 31 13,416 1,220 10.74 977
2024 12 31 22,934 2,086 10.47 952
2024 27,448 2,497 10.99 1,000
31,285 2,846 11.02 1,002

30,753 2,797 10.99 1,000

27,934 2,541 10.14 922

28,175 2,563 10.24 931
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12 22,934 2,086 10.47 952
2025 20,730 1,886 10.54 959
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6,507,216 690,860 5,816,356

2022 10 12

2003 12 (6,507,216) (690, 860) (5,816, 356)
9,105,983 2,275,607 12,646,732

2024

2004 12 (9,105,983) (2,275,607) (12,646,732)
20,285,445 3,604,017 16,681,428

2022 10 12

2023 19 (20,285, 445) (3,604,017) (16,681,428)
7,043,830 8,701,424 15,023,834

2024

2004 12 (7.,043,830) (8,701,424) (15,023,834)

271,686 5,072 266,614
2022 10 12
2003 12 (271,686) (5,072) (266,614)
91,698 22,113 336,199

2024

2004 12 (91,698) (22,113) (336,199)
1,442,931 193,787 1,249,144

2022 10 12

2003 12 (1,442,931) (193,787) (1,249,144)
2,984,665 2,043,464 2,190, 345

2024

2024 12 (2,984, 665) (2,043,464) (2,190, 345)
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
- 246,577,977 35,154,622 197,147,584 28,107,331
2.4 1,713,782 244,334 669,907 95,509
30,000 4,277 6,085,001 867,551
58,727 8,373 260,063 37,077
248,380,486 35,411,606 204,162,645 29,107,468
2.1 58,727 8,373 260,064 37,077
5 10 2.8 1,713,781 244,334 677,469 96,587
2.4 30,000 4,277 6,077,529 866,473
1,802,508 256,984 7,015,062 1,000,137
246,577,978 35,154,622 197,147,583 28,107,331

74/243



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
)
2.11 3,078,151 438,852 1,943,984 277,154
(43,967,481)  (6,268,444) 50,868,630 7,252,341
2.2
20,210,363 2,881,391 (43,406,957) (6,188,530)
2.2
)6 9,726 1,387 1,108 158
(20,669,241)  (2,946,814) 9,406,765 1,341,122
8.2 3,078,151 438,852 1,943,984 277,154
3,078,151 438,852 1,943,984 277,154
(23,747,392)  (3,385,666) 7,462,781 1,063,969
(23,747,392)  (3,385,666) 7,462,781 1,063,969
* 2022 10 12 2023 12 31
)
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2024 12 31
2022 10 12
224,573,209 32,017,402
2.8 (34,888,407)  (4,974,040)
7,462,781 1,063,969
2023 12 31 197,147,583 28,107,331
168,910,641 24,081,590
2.8 (95,732,854)  (13,648,633)
(23,747,392)  (3,385,666)
2024 12 31 246,577,978 35,154,622
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

(23,747,392) (3,385,666) 7,462,781 1,063,969
(168,910,640) (24,081,590) (273,268,813) (38,959,935)
95,723,129 13,647,247 83,582,902 11,916,414
43,967,481 6,268,444 (50,868, 630) (7,252,341)
(20,210,363) (2,881,391) 43,406,957 6,188,530
(1,043,875) (148,825) (669,907) (95,509)
201,336 28,704 (260,063) (37,077)
(201,337) (28,705) 260,064 37,077
(6,047,529) (862,196) 6,077,529 866,473
(80,269,190) (11,443,978) (184,277,180) (26,272,398)
174,965,732 24,944,864 218,488,118 31,149,851
(94,696,542) (13,500,886) (34,210,938) (4,877,453)
80,269,190 11,443,978 184,277,180 26,272,398
2.1 - B B B
2.1 - - - -

* 2022 10 12 2023 12 31
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QY

2024 12 31 2024 12 31
246,577,977 269,774,571

2023 12 31 2023 12 31
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100
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31
14,199,806 2,190,345 6.4829
3,603,405 336,199 10.7181
92,817,206 15,023,834 6.1780
135,957,561 12,646,732 10.7504
246,577,978 30,197,110
2023 12 31
9,154,461 1,249,144 7.3286
3,133,746 266,614 11.7539
121,519,135 16,681,428 7.2847
63,340,241 5,816,356 10.8900
197,147,583 24,013,542
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

100
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2024 12 31

10,000

2024 12 31

20,915,388 (13,768,665)
1,067,684 (251,386)
47,041,917 (57,295,976)
99,885,652 (24,416,827)
168,910, 641 (95,732,854)
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2024 12 31
2023 12 31
9,730,623 (1,337,332)
2,885,359 (57,430)
144,034,773 (26,203,689)
67,922,454 (7,289,956)
224,573,209 (34,888,407)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2024 12 31
1,249,144 2,984,665 (2,043,464) 2,190,345
266,614 91,698 (22,113) 336,199
16,681,428 7,043,830 (8,701,424) 15,023,834
5,816,356 9,105,983 (2,275,607) 12,646,732
24,013,542 19,226,176 (13,042,608) 30,197,110
2022 10 12 2003 12 31
1,442,931 (193,787) 1,249,144
271,686 (5,072) 266,614
20,285,445 (3.604,017) 16,681,428
6,507,216 (690, 860) 5,816,356
28,507,278 (4,493,736) 24,013,542
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2024 12 31

5.1

QY
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2024 12 31
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31
2024 12 31

AID $ -3 14,198,912 $ (528,893) $ 13,670,019 5.5%
EUR - 3,603,184 (50,920) 3,552,264 1.4%
JPY (58,727) 92,823,513 (154,137) 92,610,649 37.6%
(58,727) 110,625,609 (733,950) 109,832,932 44 5%
usb - 135,952,368 792,678 136,745,046 55.5%
$ (58,727) $ 246,577,977 $ 58,728 $ 246,577,978 100.0%
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2024 12 31
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
AUD $ - $ 9,154,278 $ - $ 9,154,278 4._6%
EUR - 3,133,637 - 3,133,637 1.6%
JPY (150,366) 121,519,554 - 121,369,188 61.6%
(150,366) 133,807,469 - 133,657,103 67.8%
usb (109,698) 63,340,115 260,063 63,490,480 32.2%
$ (260,064) $ 197,147,584 $ 260,063 $ 197,147,583 100.0%
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024
AUD +/- 9.26% +/-  $ 1,265,844
EUR +/- 5.69% +/- $ 202,124
JPY +/- 10.71% -/+ 3 9,918,601
2023
AUD +/- 7.84% +/- $ 717,695
EUR +/- 12.10% +/- $ 379,170
JPY +/- 4.00% +/- $ 4,854,768
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2,465,780
1,971,476

(®)
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
41,493,977,381 264,023,781
27,544,072,338 195,375,744
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31
2023 12 31

©
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2024 12 31
15

2024 12 31
58,727 58,727
1,713,781 1,713,781
30,000 30,000
1,802,508 1,802,508

2023 12 31
260,064 260,064
6,077,529 6,077,529
677,469 677,469
7,015,062 7,015,062
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31
246,577,977 246,577,977
2023 12 31
197,147,584 197,147,584
®
B
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5.2

QY

(®)

©

®
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2024 12 31

®)
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2024 12 31

Q)

©
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2024 12 31

m
2163 12
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2024 12 31
2024
12 31
2024 12 31
246,577,977 246,577,977
246,577,977 246,577,977
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2024 12 31
2023
12 31
2023 12 31
197,147,584 197,147,584
197,147,584 197,147,584
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
43
2.2 (D)

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 12 31

2024 12 31 100
03/01/2027 14,198,912 (1,082,514)
03/01/2027 3,603,184 (86,150)
03/01/2027 92,823,513 (20,214,866)
03/01/2027 135,952,368 (1,813,064)
246,577,977 (23,196,594)
2023 12 31 100
2028 10 12 63,340,115 2,326,267
2028 10 12 3,133,637 297,476
2028 10 12 121,519,554 (46,669, 496)
2028 10 12 9,154,278 638,796
197,147,584 (43,406,957)
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
(43,967,481) 50,868,630
(43,967,481) 50,868,630
20,210,363 (43,406,957)
20,210,363 (43,406,957)
2024 2023
3,078,151 1,943,984
3,078,151 1,943,984
8.1
»

0.01
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2024 12 31
®
0.07 10
0.06 10 0.05
3,750
©
8.2
QY
10,000
2024
12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
®
2024 12 31
2023 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 12 31

1.215

43
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2024 12 31
90
©
5,000
2024 12 31 2023 12
31 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
Q)
0.85
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 12 31
®)
2024 3 1 UBS AG
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31
2023 12 31
43,967,481 50,868,630 20,210,363
43,406,957
10 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10
2025 29
2025 2025 29 4,324,426

48,825,252
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 6) $ 246,577,977 $ 197,147,584
Receivables for:

Investments sold (Note 2.4) 1,713,782 669,907

Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 30,000 6,085,091

Other assets 58,727 260,063

Total assets 248,380,486 204,162,645

Liabilities
Bank overdraft (Note 2.1) 58,727 260,064
Payables for:

Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) 1,713,781 677,469

Investments purchased (Note 2.4) 30,000 6,077,529
t;?gé;ltles (excluding net assets attributable to the holder of 1,802,508 7,015,062
Net assets attributable to the holder of units (Note 3) $ 246,577,978 $ 197,147,583

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023*
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL(D
Fee income (Note 2.11, 7) $ 3,078,151 $ 1,943,984

Net realized (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at (43,967 ,481)

fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 7) 50,868,630
Net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on financial
gsgeti)and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 20,210,363 (43,406,957)
Net realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6) 9,726 1,108
Total (loss)/income (20,669,241) 9,406,765
Expenses
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2B) 3,078,151 1,943,984
Total expenses 3,078,151 1,943,984
Operating profit/(loss) (23,747,392) 7,462,781
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (being (decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ (23,747,392) $ 7,462,781

* For the period from October 12, 2022 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2023.
(D This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(““FVTPL”?) including realized and unrealized gain/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss and fee income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Units
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At October 12, 2022 (Commencement of Operations) $ -
Issue of units (Note 3) 224,573,209
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (34,888,407)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable

to the holder of units from operations) 7,462,781
At December 31, 2023 $ 197,147,583
Issue of units (Note 3) 168,910,641
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (95,732,854)
Total comprehensive (loss) (being (decrease) in net assets

attributable to the holder of units from operations) (23,747,392)
At December 31, 2024 $ 246,577,978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the holder of
units from operations

Adjustments to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from operations to cash
provided by/(used in) operating activities:

Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Proceeds from disposition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net realized loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss

Net change in unrealized (appreciation)/depreciation on financial

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(Increase) in receivables for investments sold

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

(Decrease)/increase in bank overdraft

(Decrease)/increase in payables for investments purchased
Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for
units issued

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units
repurchased

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Note 2.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1)

December 31, 2024

$ (23,747,392)

(168,910, 640)

95,723,129
43,967,481

(20,210, 363)
(1,043,875)
201,336
(201,337)
(6,047,529)

December 31, 2023*

$ 7,462,781

(273,268,813)

83,582,902
(50,868, 630)

43,406,957
(669,907)
(260,063)

260,064
6,077,529

(80, 269,190)

(184,277,180)

174,965,732

(94,696,542)

218,488,118

(34,210,938)

80,269,190

184,277,180

* For the period from October 12, 2022 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2023.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund (the““Series Trust®”) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust
(Cayman) 111 (the““Trust””), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed
dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a
Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 26, 2022 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the
““Trustee””), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust
commenced operations on October 12, 2022.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands and
registered under the Mutual Funds Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana
Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

The manager of the Series Trust is UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the““Manager””).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman &
Co. (the““Administrator””,““Custodian”~and““Transfer Agent””).

From March 1, 2024, UBS AG, London Branch ("UBS AG") acts as the Fee Agent (the““Fee Agent””),
Calculation Agent (the ““Calculation Agent””) and the Collateralized Swap Counterparty (the
““Collateralized Swap Counterparty””). Prior to that date, Credit Suisse International acted as
the Fee Agent, Calculation Agent and the Collateralized Swap Counterparty

The Manager has authorized SMBC Trust Bank Ltd. to act as the Distributor (the““Distributor’”) of
the units in Japan.

From March 1, 2024, UBS Securities Japan Co. Ltd. acts as the Agent Member Company (the““Agent

Member Company””). Prior to that date, Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited, acted as the
Agent Member Company.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust and the USD Class Units are denominated in““U.S.““ Dollars. All references to
““U.S.““ Dollars,““USD>?and““$>”are to““U.S.““ Dollars. The JPY Class Units are denominated in
Japanese Yen. All references to "\",““JPY””and "Yen" are to Japanese Yen. The EUR Class Units are
denominated in Euro. All references to "EUR"™ are to Euro. The AUD Class Units are denominated in
Australian Dollars. All references to "AUD" are to Australian Dollars. The NZD Class Units are
denominated in New Zealand Dollars. All references to "NZD" are to New Zealand Dollars.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to provide investors with medium-term to long-
term capital growth by providing exposure to a notional trading strategy (the ““Strategy””) which
sells put option contracts on a selected equity index (the "Selected Index™). The Selected Index
will be selected by the Manager from (1) a representative US equity index, (2) a representative
European equity index, and (3) a representative Japanese equity index (the "Index Universe™), and
such indices will initially be comprised of (1) the S&P 500 Index (Bloomberg ticker: SPX Index),
(2) the EURO STOXX 50 Index (Bloomberg ticker: SX5E Index), and (3) the Nikkei 225 Stock Average
(Bloomberg ticker: NKY Index) (the "Initial Indices™). However, potential investors should note
that the Manager may replace any of the Initial Indices (and the Index Universe as applicable)
with another representative equity index where the Manager considers that such substitution is in
the interests of Unitholders and such terms are in accordance with the Series Trust®"s investment
objective. The Initial Indices track the performance of 500 large companies listed on stock
exchanges in the United States, the performance of 50 companies listed on stock exchanges in
Eurozone countries and the price-weighted performance of 225 top-rated companies listed on Tokyo
Stock Exchange, respectively.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Strategy aims to generate stable income by receiving option premiums from the sale of put
options, and reinvesting such income in the Strategy. The underlying of the put options are
intended to be selected from the Index Universe referencing market data on a specific business
day before each rebalance of the Strategy. The index from the Index Universe with the implied
highest option premium in relation to put option contracts with a strike price of 92% of the
index level (such put option contract in the selection having the same maturity date as the put
option contract that will be sold during the rebalance) on that specific business day will be
selected as the underlying. While the Strategy does not offer exposure to the upside performance
of the Selected Index, in principle, the Strategy aims to mitigate some losses from declines in
the Selected Index level by setting a strike price of 92% of the Selected Index level at the time
the put option contract is entered into, such that the Selected Index could decrease by up to 8%
during the relevant period, before the Strategy realizes a loss at the time of the put option
expiry (noting that put option contracts are marked to market and any unrealized loss may impact
the Strategy valuation at any point in time prior to the relevant put option contract®s expiry).

The Collateralized Swaps Counterparty has agreed under the Collateralized Swaps to pay to the
Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust, income in the form of an amount equal to
the Monthly Distribution (which may include amounts realized from the partial termination of the
relevant Collateralized Swaps Counterparty) (if any) (and, if applicable, a Special Distribution)
in respect of each class of units, as discussed in Note 2.7.

The Collateralized Swaps Counterparty has also agreed under each of the Collateralized Swaps to
pay the Fee Coupon (the““Fee Coupon””) to the Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of the Series
Trust, which the Trustee intends to apply towards the payment of the Fee Agent"s Operational
Costs Fee. Unitholders will therefore not be entitled to any distributions of the Fee Coupon, as
discussed in Note 7.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS””) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit

Suisse””) following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG announced the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse
Group AG by way of a statutory merger. As a result of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceased
to exist, and Credit Suisse AG became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. One of
the key steps of the integration is the legal merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (the ““Parent
Bank Merger””). The Parent Bank Merger is a statutory merger by absorption under Swiss law,
whereby UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cease to exist upon
completion of the merger. At this point in time, in principle, all assets, liabilities and
contracts of Credit Suisse AG and its branches will automatically transfer to UBS AG (and its
branches as the case may be) by operation of law (in other words by ““universal succession®”). As
a result, UBS AG will automatically take over all the rights and responsibilities from Credit
Suisse AG. The Parent Bank Merger was completed with effect from May 31, 2024.

Following a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now
incorporated under the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited. The Master Trust Deed was revised

through a Deed of Amendment on March 1, 2024.

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il1.

Certain comparative figures in the financial statements have been adjusted to align with current
year presentation.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on April 29, 2025.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards (““IFRS>”).

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise
their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust"s accounting policies. Areas where
assumptions and estimates are material to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS
Accounting Standard 12 and IAS Accounting Standard 27) (2012) (the Amendments). Management
concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS Accounting Standard 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial
assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of financial assets under IFRS
Accounting Standard 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and,

ii) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent
payments of principal and interest (SPPI).
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii)At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so
eliminates or materially reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust"s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

- Tfeatures that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and receivables for
units issued, receivable for securities sold and other assets. These financial assets are
held to collect contractual cash flow.

Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Investment in Collateralized Swaps). These financial assets are managed and their
performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is

managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how the Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for

derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's

continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include bank overdraft, payables for securities

purchased, payable for units repurchased and other fees.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)
Impairment of financial assets

The < expected credit loss®™ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and
debt investment at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust®s assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the
Series Trust"s financial assets because:

The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do
not apply to such instruments.

The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of
high credit quality and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are
expected to be small.

Changes in material accounting policies

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2) from January 1, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the
accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the
financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of "material® rather than “significant® accounting
policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of
accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy
information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

There were no subsequent changes to the adopted accounting policy information during the year
ended December 31, 2024.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for year ended December
31, 2024:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2024 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early
applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not
have a material effect on the Series Trust"s financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position.

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Series Trust held no cash and cash equivalents.

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in Collateralized Swaps.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2024
- Fair Value - Cost

Investments in Collateralized Swaps $ 246,577,977 $ 269,774,571

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023
- Fair Value - Cost

Investments in Collateralized Swaps $ 197,147,584 % 240,554,541

Financial assets at amortized cost:
Receivables for investments sold, receivable for units issued and other assets.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: payables for investments purchased and payable for units repurchased.
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(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are
recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual obligations are
discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at
fair value with transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent
to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss® category are presented in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses
on sale of investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. This is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate nature of
these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of
a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for which market
quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith
in accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager.

The resulting change in unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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(E) Investment in Collateralized Swaps

The Trustee enters into the Collateralized Swaps with the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty, for
the account of the relevant class of units, which is linked to the performance of the relevant
Strategy. Each Collateralized Swaps is U.S. Dollars denominated structure of approximately five
year maturity (which may be extended at the discretion of the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty
or may be subject to automatic extension unless otherwise specified by the Collateralized Swaps
Counterparty).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, all financial assets and
liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument
offsetting and therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Investments Sold and Payables for Investments Purchased

Receivables for investments sold and payables for investments purchased represent trading
transactions that have been contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial
Position date, respectively. These amounts are recognized initially and subsequently measured at
fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for investments sold. A
provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust
will not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for investments sold. Significant
financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered indicators that the amount of
receivables for investments sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars.
The Trustee considers the U.S. Dollars as the currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The
financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series Trust®"s functional and
presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollars
amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue
and repurchase of units and income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into U.S. Dollars amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are included in net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Net realized gain/(loss) and net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on foreign
currency transactions, if any, are disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The current distribution policy of the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders,
provided that the Manager may, in its discretion, determine that distributions in respect of a
class of Units be payable from time to time. Consequently, all the net income and realized
capital gains attributable to a class of Units will be reinvested and reflected in the Net Asset
Value attributable to such class of Units.

There were no distributions declared and reinvested during the year ended December 31, 2024 and
the period ended December 31, 2023.
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2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has five classes of units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The
Series Trust classifies its puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with IAS 32
(Amendment), Financial instruments: Presentation. The amendment requires puttable financial
instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where
certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be
identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other
than the obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based
substantially on the profit or loss of the issuer.

The Series Trust"s participating units do not meet all of these conditions and are accordingly
classified as financial liabilities at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Series Trust®s Net Asset Value.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date if the holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust®s Net Asset Value per unit
at the time of issue or repurchase. The Series Trust"s Net Asset Value per unit is calculated by
dividing the net assets attributable to the holder of each class of units by the total number of
outstanding units for each respective class. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that
contain a variety of indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown. However, the Series Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to
these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.
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2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units Issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement
of Financial Position date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount
that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gains or
losses and Generated Income (the““Generated Income””). Net realized gain or loss from financial
instruments at FVTPL is calculated using the first-in-first-out method. Net realized (loss) or
gain on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of
the financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade.

Net change in unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning
of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period and
its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 7 for further details.

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all
local income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in
the Cayman Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income
and capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid during the year ended
December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023.

The Series Trust invests in securities domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many
of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to non-residents including the Series Trust. These capital gains taxes are required to
be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the
Series Trust"s broker on a "withholding"” basis.
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In accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability
when it is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed
on the Series Trust®s capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant
taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is
then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the
tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore
investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will
ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities
management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the
relevant tax authorities.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust
did not have a liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying
financial statements. While this represents the Manager®s best estimate there remains a risk that
the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and
could result in a loss to the Series Trust.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset
Value of the Series Trust by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The
Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust at the close of business on each
dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in the currency of denomination of
the applicable class of Units.

The USD Class Units, the minimum initial subscription must be no less than USD100 and orders may
not include fractions. All unitholders must complete a subscription application. The initial
purchase price of units is USD10 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in USD. The
Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.
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The JPY Class Units, the minimum initial subscription must be no less than JPY10,000 and orders
may not include fractions. All unitholders must complete a subscription application. The initial
purchase price of units is \1,000 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in JPY. The
Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The EUR Class Units, the minimum initial subscription must be no less than EUR100 and orders may
not include fractions. All unitholders must complete a subscription application. The initial
purchase price of units is EUR10 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in EUR. The
Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The AUD Class Units, the minimum initial subscription must be no less than AUD100 and orders may
not include fractions. All unitholders must complete a subscription application. The initial
purchase price of units is AUD10 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in AUD. The
Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The NZD Class Units, the minimum initial subscription must be no less than NZD100 and orders may
not include fractions. All unitholders must complete a subscription application. The initial
purchase price of units is NZD10 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in NZD. The
Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription date at the relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in
U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing
reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or

prior to 7:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant
subscription date. Subscription applications are irrevocable.
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The total net assets, units outstanding and net asset value per unit as of December 31, 2024 were

as follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit
AUD Class Units $ 14,199,806 2,190,345 $ 6.4829
EUR Class Units 3,603,405 336,199 10.7181
JPY Class Units 92,817,206 15,023,834 6.1780
USD Class Units 135,957,561 12,646,732 10.7504

$ 246,577,978 30,197,110

The total net assets, units outstanding and net asset value per unit as of December 31, 2023 were

as follows:

Net Asset Value
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding per unit
AUD Class Units $ 9,154,461 1,249,144 $ 7.3286
EUR Class Units 3,133,746 266,614 11.7539
JPY Class Units 121,519,135 16,681,428 7.2847
USD Class Units 63,340,241 5,816,356 10.8900

$ 197,147,583 24,013,542

The operational currency of the units is U.S. Dollars.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who
hold 100% of interest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the
Trustee which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be
effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until entered into the Series Trust"s register
of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice
requesting to have all or a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the
relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may be submitted in either the relevant currency or
in units. IT such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder
recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a
minimum repurchase requirement of \10,000 or 1 unit. Repurchase notices are irrevocable.
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For the avoidance of doubt, a Repurchase Fee is not applied in the case of units repurchased on
the Final Repurchase Day.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are
paid in cash but may be made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities
held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustee, in consultation with the Manager, determines
it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made by the Trustee,
distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable
currency as a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted
from the amount payable to such unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior
to actual distribution.

During the year ended December 31, 2024 the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as

follows:
Proceeds from Proceeds from

Classes of units units issued units repurchased
AUD Class Units $ 20,915,388 $ (13,768,665)
EUR Class Units 1,067,684 (251,386)
JPY Class Units 47,041,917 (57,295,976)
USD Class Units 99,885,652 (24,416,827)
Total $ 168,910,641 $ (95,732,854)

During the period ended December 31, 2023 the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as

follows:
Proceeds from Proceeds from

Classes of units units issued units repurchased
AUD Class Units $ 9,730,623 $ (1,337,332)
EUR Class Units 2,885,359 (57,430)
JPY Class Units 144,034,773 (26,203,689)
USD Class Units 67,922,454 (7,289,956)
Total $ 224,573,209 $ (34,888,407)
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During the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023, the number of
units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At December 31, At December 31,
Classes of units 2023 Units issued Units repurchased 2024
AUD Class Units 1,249,144 2,984,665 (2,043,464) 2,190,345
EUR Class Units 266,614 91,698 (22,113) 336,199
JPY Class Units 16,681,428 7,043,830 (8,701,424) 15,023,834
USD Class Units 5,816,356 9,105,983 (2,275,607) 12,646,732
Total 24,013,542 19,226,176 (13,042,608) 30,197,110

At October 12,

2022 (Commencement At December 31,
Classes of units of Operations) Units issued Units repurchased 2023
AUD Class Units - 1,442,931 (193,787) 1,249,144
EUR Class Units - 271,686 (5,072) 266,614
JPY Class Units - 20,285,445 (3,604,017) 16,681,428
USD Class Units - 6,507,216 (690,860) 5,816,356
Total - 28,507,278 (4,493,736) 24,013,542

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended
in any circumstances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The
Trustee will inform unitholder of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or
lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn during such
suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the case
may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for
example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed
by the Manager.
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5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the
Statement of Financial Position date and the risk management policies employed by the Series
Trust are discussed below. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager, under
policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which
it is exposed; these methods are explained below.

(A) Market Risk
Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk.

The Series Trust"s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Series Trust's
investment objective. The Series Trust aims to provide unitholder with exposure to the Strategy
through investment of all subscription proceeds received from the issue of units into the
Collateralized Swaps Counterparty. The Manager periodically holds meetings of its board of
directors and report on the investment management and the compliance monitoring status of the
Manager .

The Manager manages the investments of the Series Trust in accordance with the investment
objectives and strategies of the Series Trust making sure that necessary and economically
rational steps are taken to prevent the Series Trust"s assets from being used or invested in
violation of the investment restrictions or borrowing and leverage restrictions of the Series
Trust. The Manager carries out investment management activities in accordance with internally
prepared and periodically updated investment guidelines. The Manager advises the Trustee of any
investment management decisions or other investment management activities required as a result of
occurrences or circumstances outside of the ordinary course of business.
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(i) Currency Risk

Within the Collateralized Swaps, currency hedging techniques will be performed at Strategy level
in respect of the currency of each class of Units, to minimize the risk of currency fluctuation
between USD, AUD, JPY, EUR or NZD, as the case may be (the currency of denomination of the
indices of the Index Universe and options written on the Selected Index) and the currency of
denomination of each class of Units.

Collateralized Swaps held by the Series Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manager
believes that the Series Trust has little currency risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due
to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency rates.

Collateralized Swaps Counterparty transactions in which the Series Trust invests through the
Strategies, may be denominated or quoted in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the value of
the Series Trust"s portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust"s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a
security denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving
effect to the conversion into the Series Trust"s functional currency. Conversely, when the Series
Trust"s functional currency decreases in value against another currency, a security denominated
in that currency gains value.

This risk, generally known as "currency risk," means that a strong functional currency of the
Series Trust may reduce returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust
may increase those returns. Currency rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time
for a number of reasons, including changes in interest rates, intervention (or the failure to
intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the International
Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments. As a
result, the Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its
returns. Certain positions taken by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting
currency price movements. Predicting future prices is inherently uncertain and the losses
incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of
attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved in
attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.
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Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust or classes
thereof, as applicable, may be exposed to the performance of a particular currency or currencies
to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust or class. There can be no assurance that the
Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust or class could incur
losses attributable to its currency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens
against the other currencies of the Series Trust or classes. In addition, the Series Trust or
class will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy designated by the
Manager .

The table below summarizes the Series Trust"s exposure to currency risks as of December 31, 2024:

Cash and Cash

At Equivalents, Other Assets % of Net
December 31, net of Bank Equity and debt and Liabilities Asset
2024 Overdraft securities (Net) Net Value
Australian
Dollar AUD $ -3 14,198,912 $ (528,893) $ 13,670,019 5.5%
Euro EUR - 3,603,184 (50,920) 3,552,264 1.4%
Japanese Yen JPY (58,727) 92,823,513 (154,137) 92,610,649 37.6%
(58,727) 110,625,609 (733,950) 109,832,932 44 5%
United States
Dollar usb - 135,952,368 792,678 136,745,046 55.5%
$ (58,727) $ 246,577,977 $ 58,728 $ 246,577,978 100.0%

The table below summarizes the Series Trust®s exposure to currency risks as of December 31, 2023:

Cash and Cash

At Equivalents, Other Assets % of Net
December 31, net of Bank Equity and debt and Liabilities Asset
2023 Overdraft securities (Net) Net Value
Australian
Dollar AUD $ - $ 9,154,278 $ -3 9,154,278 4.6%
Euro EUR - 3,133,637 - 3,133,637 1.6%
Japanese Yen JPY (150,366) 121,519,554 - 121,369,188 61.6%
(150,366) 133,807,469 - 133,657,103 67.8%
United States
Dollar usb (109,698) 63,340,115 260,063 63,490,480 32.2%
$ (260,064) $ 197,147,584 $ 260,063 $ 197,147,583 100.0%
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The following tables summarize the sensitivity of the Series Trust"s assets and liabilities to
changes in foreign exchange movements at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The analysis is
based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign exchange rate increased/(decreased) against
the U.S. Dollar by the percentages disclosed in the tables, with all other variables held
constant. This represents management"s best estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the
foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible

shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2024 Net Assets
AUD +/- 9.26% +/- $ 1,265,844
EUR +/- 5.69% +/- $ 202,124
JPY +/- 10.71% +/-  $ 9,918,601

Reasonably possible

shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2023 Net Assets
AUD +/- 7.84% /- $ 717,695
EUR +/- 12.10% /- % 379,170
JPY +/- 4.00% /-  $ 4,854,768

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. As a result, the
Series Trust is not subject to any significant risk or direct significant exposures to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

(iii) Market Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to the Strategies or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market.

As the Series Trust®s investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in

the Statement of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the
total net assets and total comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

An increase in market prices of securities of 1% at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023
would, all else being equal, increase net assets attributable to the holder of units by
$2,465,780 and $1,971,476, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being, have an equal
but opposite effect.

(B) Credit Risk

The Series Trust takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when they fall due. Impairment provisions are provided for losses
that have been incurred by the Statement of Financial Position date, if any.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The Manager determines
concentration risk in relation to exposure to individual counterparties. At the Statement of
Financial Position date, the entire net assets are held by the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty.

The Collateralized Swaps Counterparty has charged collateral to the Trustee for the benefit of
the unitholder and the Trustee has recourse to such collateral in the event of a failure by the
Collateralized Swaps Counterparty to perform its payment and other obligations under the
Collateralized Swaps. However, there is no guarantee that the value of the collateral realized
will be sufficient to meet the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty"s payment obligations under the
Collateralized Swaps Counterparty.

Where the value of the collateral decreases below the predetermined collateral coverage, the
agreement requires the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty to post additional collateral. As of
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Series Trust®s collateral value were \41,493,977,381
($264,023,781) and \27,544,072,338 ($195,375,744) , respectively.

The credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with reputable financial institutions
and counterparties.

The Manager monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of such
parties on an ongoing basis. The Manager has determined the credit ratings of these parties to be
at appropriate levels.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets as of December 31, 2024 and December
31, 2023, is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position, without taking
into account the net realizable value of collateral, where charged. None of these assets are
impaired or past due.
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Collateralized Swaps are entered into with UBS AG, with a Moody"s credit rating of Aa2 as of
December 31, 2024, and with Credit Suisse International, with a Moody"s credit rating of A3 as of
December 31, 2023.

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series
Trust"s investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it
may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. To the extent
that the Series Trust®s principal investment strategies involve non- developed country securities
and securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the
greatest exposure to liquidity risk. The Series Trust"s investments are not traded in an
organized market and may be illiquid. As a result, the Series Trust may not be able to quickly
liquidate its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its
liquidity requirements.

The Series Trust"s constitution provides for the daily cancellation of units and it is therefore
exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting a unitholder™s repurchase at any time if it is unable to
sell sufficient investments to meet the repurchase amount. Units are repurchased on demand at the
holder®"s option. However, the Trustee does not envisage that this contractual maturity disclosed
will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically
retain them for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust®s liquidity position on an ongoing basis. Financial
liabilities have residual contractual maturities of less than three months. Liquidity risk is
managed by investing no more than 15% of the Series Trust®s Net Asset Value in illiquid assets
which cannot be readily realized. The total value of securities sold short shall not at any time
exceed the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust.

The tables below analyze the Series Trust"s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping

based on the remaining year at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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At December 31, 2024 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Bank overdraft $ 58,727 -3 58,727
Payables for:

Units repurchased 1,713,781 - 1,713,781
Investments purchased 30,000 - 30,000
Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 1,802,508 - $ 1,802,508
At December 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Bank overdraft $ 260,064 - $ 260,064
Payables for:

Investments purchased 6,077,529 - 6,077,529
Units repurchased 677,469 - 677,469
Contractual cash out flows (excluding net assets

attributable to the holder of units) $ 7,015,062 $ - $ 7,015,062

The following tables summarize the Series Trust"s Collateralized Swaps Counterparty with net

settlement for which the contractual maturities are considered to be essential to an

understanding of the timing of cash flows based on the Series Trust"s investment strategy. The

movement in unrealized depreciation on investment in Collateralized Swaps disclosed represents

the undiscounted cash flows.

Greater than

1 year Total
At December 31, 2024
Investment in Collateralized Swaps $ 246,577,977 $ 246,577,977
Greater than
1 year Total
At December 31, 2023
Investment in Collateralized Swaps $ 197,147,584 $ 197,147,584
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(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust"s Manager team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk
measures. Prospective investors should be aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and
no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed by the Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-
loss, sharpe ratios, loss limits, value-at-risk or any other methodology now known or later
developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or otherwise limit substantial losses. No
assurance can be given that the risk management systems and techniques or pricing models will
accurately predict future trading patterns or the manner in which investments are priced in
financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holders of
units. The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a
daily basis as the Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the
discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust"s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the
unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Series Trust"s policy is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and
adjust the amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holders of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series
Trust.

The Manager monitors total capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the
holder of units.
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5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks

(A) Custody Risk

The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become
insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or investments held by
those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease
in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in
the United States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and
trade regulations may also involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of
securities) not typically associated with the settlement of United States investments. At times,
settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager to carry out transactions for
the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a
purchase of underlying securities, it may miss attractive investment opportunities and some of
the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested with no return earned thereon for some period.

If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series Trust may

lose money if the value of the security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the
security to another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.
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(D) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the
Custodian, with which the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series
Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and default on their respective obligations owed in
respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses to the Series
Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order to secure certain transactions.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position and did not hold any derivative assets.

(E) Collateral Risk

Although obtaining collateral from counterparties and any collateral management system
implemented is intended to help mitigate the Series Trust"s potential exposure to a default by or
the insolvency of a counterparty, such risks cannot be completely eliminated. The collateral
provided may not be sufficient to meet the counterparty"s obligations for a number of reasons. In
addition, while the collateral provided by a counterparty will be independently valued on a daily
basis, the value of certain fixed income and/or equity securities provided as collateral may not
always have a live quoted price.

There is no guarantee that the collateral will be correctly and accurately valued. To the extent
that the collateral is not correctly valued, the Series Trust may suffer a loss. Even if the
collateral is correctly valued, the collateral may decrease in value between the time of default
or insolvency of the counterparty and the time at which the collateral is realized. Similarly
when the Series Trust invests into other assets and substantially exchanges through a
Collateralized Swaps a portion of their value against the value of a Strategy, the assets serve a
similar purpose as collateral and such assets may decrease in value between the time of default
or insolvency of the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty and the time at which they are realized.
The risk of a decrease in the value of collateral or other assets held by the Series Trust
serving a similar purpose may be greater for illiquid assets, due to the length of time it may
take to realize such assets, and such assets may comprise all or a significant portion of the
collateral provided and/or the investments of the Series Trust.
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A counterparty"s payment obligations and the collateral posted by a counterparty will be
independently valued on each business day, and the amount and composition of collateral will be
adjusted to meet the collateralization requirements. While the collateral policy will be
monitored by the Manager, to the extent that the policy is not correctly adhered to and
implemented the Series Trust may suffer a loss in the event of default or insolvency of the
counterparty.

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income in respect of a class of units.
Distributions may be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to a class
of units or, alternatively, the Generated Income for a class of units may be zero. A distribution
can in effect result in a return of an investor®s initial capital or capital gains; thereby
eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. The Manager may
also, in its discretion, determine that one or more Special Distributions be declared and payable
in respect of a class of units. The amount of any Special Distribution shall be determined by the
Manager in its discretion. In consequence of this possibility, investors seeking capital
preservation are strongly advised to consider that not only may deterioration in the value of the
Series Trust"s investments be caused by declining asset values but also by a return of capital to
investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a
unitholder receives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder”s
initial investment.

(G) No Interest in the Collateralized Swaps

Any return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the relevant
Collateralized Swaps.

An investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Collateralized Swaps
or any underlying assets linked to such Collateralized Swaps nor does it give the unitholder any
right to control the actions of the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty, any underlying asset
linked to the relevant Collateralized Swaps or any service provider to the Collateralized Swaps
Counterparty. In order to offset (whether in whole or in part) its liability under the
Collateralized Swaps, the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty or a third party may own an interest
(directly or indirectly) in the underlying assets comprising the relevant strategy contained in
the Collateralized Swaps, however, there is no requirement that any such person must maintain
such an interest or as to the size of any such interest.
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(H) Discretion of Calculation Agent

The Calculation Agent of the Collateralized Swaps has discretion to carry out calculations and to
make certain determinations with regards to the Collateralized Swaps. Although the Calculation
Agent of the Collateralized Swaps has a general duty to act in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner, the terms and conditions of the Collateralized Swaps do not impose any express
contractual duty on the Calculation Agent of the Collateralized Swaps to act with the best
interests of the Trustee in mind and investors should be aware that any decision made by the
Calculation Agent of the Collateralized Swaps may have an unforeseen adverse impact on the
financial return of the Collateralized Swaps. Any such discretion exercised by, or any
calculation made by, the Calculation Agent of the Collateralized Swaps (in the absence of
manifest error) is binding on the Collateralized Swaps Counterparty and the Trustee and therefore
ultimately on unitholder.

(1) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
Final Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standard 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last
traded market price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation
techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and
other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm*s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.
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For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally
developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally
recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market
observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model is always an
estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust
holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors
including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in
its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. ITf a fair value measurement uses observable
inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or
liability.

The determination of what constitutes “ observable” requires significant judgment by the
Administrator, under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the
Manager, considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
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The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of December 31,
2024 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities held for trading:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable
Financial Assets at Fair Markets for ldentical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2024
Investment in Collateralized Swaps $ -3 246,577,977 $ - $ 246,577,977
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 246,577,977 $ - $ 246,577,977

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of December 31,
2023 in valuing the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities held for trading:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices in Active Other Unobservable
Financial Assets at Fair Markets for ldentical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2023
Investment in Collateralized Swaps $ - $ 197,147,584 $ - $ 197,147,584
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ -3 197,147,584 $ -3 197,147,584

During the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023, there were no
transfers across three levels.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives. As
Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to
transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-
transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently.

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Series Trust did not hold investments
classified as Level 3.

Valuation of the Collateralized Swaps is determined in accordance with the valuation model stated
in Appendix 43 to the Offering Memorandum. Refer to Note 2.2 (D) for further details.
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Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets
and liabilities including receivables for securities sold and receivable for units issued
and bank overdraft, payables for investments purchased and payable for units repurchased
are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate
fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note 2 for a description of the
valuation techniques.

(ii) Net assets attributable to the holder of units. The Series Trust repurchases and issues
the units at the amount equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust
at the time of repurchase, calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these
financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets attributable to the
holder of units approximates their fair value.

6. COLLATERALIZED SWAPS

The Series Trust invests in the Collateralized Swaps, the value of which is linked to the
performance of the Strategies for the account of the Series Trust. Fluctuations in value are
recorded as unrealized gain or loss. On the termination date, the Series Trust will receive a
payment from the counterparty based on the value of the referenced security and record a net
realized loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Structured products are
subject to various risks discussed in Note 5.

Units - Collateralized Swaps Outstanding at December 31, 2024: (100% of Net Assets)

L Unrealized
Expiration - S
Strategy Date Counterparty F:::ev (Depreciation)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
AUD Class Units 03/01/2027 UBS AG $ 14,198,912 $ (1,082,514)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
EUR Class Units 03/01/2027 UBS AG 3,603,184 (86,150)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
JPY Class Units 03/01/2027 UBS AG 92,823,513 (20,214,866)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
USD Class Units 0370172027 UBS AG 135,952,368 (1,813,064)

$ 246,577,977 $ (23,196,594)
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Units - Collateralized Swaps Outstanding at December 31, 2023: (100% of Net Assets)

Unrealized

Expiration Appreciation/
Strategy Date Counterparty Fair Value (Depreciation)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund Credit Suisse
USD Class Units 10/12/2028 International $ 63,340,115 $ 2,326,267
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund Credit Suisse
EUR Class Units 10/12/2028 International 3,133,637 297,476
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund Credit Suisse
JPY Class Units 10/12/2028 International 121,519,554 (46,669,496)
The Global Select Carry Strategy Fund Credit Suisse
AUD Class Units 10/12/2028 International 9,154,278 638,796

$ 197,147,584 $ (43,406,957)

7. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS IN COLLATERALIZED SWAPS AND GENERATED INCOME

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:

Net realized (loss)/gain on investments in Collateralized Swaps $ (43,967,481) $ 50,868,630
Total net realized (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss $ (43,967,481) $ 50,868,630

Movement in unrealized appreciation/ (depreciation) on investment

in Collateralized Swaps $ 20,210,363 % (43,406,957)
Total net change in unrealized appreciation/ (depreciation) on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

$ 20,210,363  $ (43,406,957)

Fee Income

Fee Income comprises of the Fee Coupon and the amounts are as follows:

2024 2023
Fee Coupon $ 3,078,151 $ 1,943,984
Total Fee Income $ 3,078,151 $ 1,943,984

The Collateralized Swaps Counterparty has agreed under the Collateralized Swaps to pay income in
the form of an amount equal to the Monthly Distribution (and, if applicable, a Special
Distribution) in respect of each class of units, as discussed in Note 1, to the Trustee, in its
capacity as trustee of the Series Trust.
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As discussed in Note 8, the Fee Agent is paid a fee by the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee
out of the assets of the Series Trust equal to the Fee Coupon (the““Operational Costs Fee’”).

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company will be entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset
Value accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The
Agent Member Company Fees will be payable by the Fee Agent out of the Operational Costs Fees.

(B) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.07% on the first US$500 million of net assets,
0.06% on the next US$500 million of net assets and 0.05% on net assets over US$1 billion, subject
to a monthly minimum fee of US$3,750. This is paid by the Fee Agent using the Operational Costs
Fee. The Administrator is also entitled to reimbursements from the Operational Costs Fee for all
out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

(C) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics
of the assets, paid by the Fee Agent using the Operational Costs Fee, for providing custody
services. The Custodian is also entitled to reimbursements from the Operational Costs Fee for all
out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.
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8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager, Distributor and Collateralized Swaps Counterparty are all
related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of $10,000 per annum payable annually in
advance which is paid by the Fee Agent using the Operational Costs Fee. All proper out-of-pocket
expenses and disbursements incurred on behalf of the Series Trust are also reimbursed to the
Trustee from the Operational Costs Fee. The fees earned by the Trustee during the year ended
December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023 and outstanding fees payable to the
Trustee as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, if any, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a
part of Fee Agent fees.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Trustee has entered into a fee agent appointment agreement with the Fee Agent pursuant to
which the Fee Agent has undertaken to pay, on behalf of the Series Trust, certain ongoing and
operational costs and expenses of the Series Trust (the““Ordinary Costs””). The fees earned by
the Fee Agent during the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023 and
outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, if any,
have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a fee of 1.215% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the
““Operational Costs Fees””), accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational
Costs Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the
Series Trust.

Fee Agent fees include the administration fees, custody fees, audit fees, distribution fees,
agent member company fees, trustee fees, manager fees, formation expenses and the following costs
and expenses, which are, in reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as ordinary costs
and expenses:

155/243



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(i) any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the Audit Fees and expenses;

(i1) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and
agencies;

(iii) insurance costs;

(iv) any costs relating to the preparation of the Offering Memorandum and this Appendix 43 and
other similar offering documents, the costs relating to the preparation, printing,
translation and delivery of such documents;

(v) tax reporting;

(vi) communication costs related to the investors services and Unitholders® meetings,
confirmations, financial reporting and other reporting, proxies;

(vii) expenses related to anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring, as well as expenses
related to the economic substance of the Series Trust; and

(viii)expenses related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of any fees related
to the Collateralized Swap(s), any broker fees relating to security transactions, any taxes
relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing,
taxes, and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that, in the Manager®s determination, would
not usually occur.

The Trustee has agreed to indemnify the Fee Agent, solely out of the assets of the Series Trust,
against all actions, proceedings, claims, costs, demands and expenses which may be brought
against, suffered or incurred by the Fee Agent by reason of the performance or non-performance of
its obligations or functions as Fee Agent under the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement
(including all legal, professional and other expenses reasonably and properly incurred), except
where such action, proceeding, claim, cost, demand or expense arises from the gross negligence,
bad faith, fraud or wilful default of the Fee Agent.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Either the Fee Agent or the Trustee may terminate the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement by giving
not less than 90 calendar days®™ written notice to the other party. The Fee Agent Appointment
Agreement may also be terminated in the circumstances set out therein.

(C) Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000
per annum payable monthly in arrears. The fees earned by the Manager during the year ended
December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023 and outstanding fees payable to the
Manager as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, if any, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a
part of Fee Agent fees.

(D) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive a fee of 0.85% per annum of the Net Asset Value
attributable to such class of Units multiplied by the fraction of Units of such class for which
the Distributor is Unitholder divided by the total number of Units issued in respect of such
class of Units, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in
arrears. (““Distribution Fees””). The Distribution Fees will be payable by the Fee Agent out of
the Operational Costs Fees. The fees earned by the Distributor during the year ended December 31,
2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, if any, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of Fee
Agent fees.

(E) Collateralized Swaps Counterparty

From March 1, 2024, the Series Trust is permitted to enter into Collateralized Swaps with UBS AG,
a related party to the Manager. Prior to that date, the Series Trust was permitted to enter into
Collateralized Swaps with Credit Suisse International, a related party to the Manager. Open
Collateralized Swaps contracts at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, are discussed in Note
6 and Note 7. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023
there was net realized (loss)/gain of $(43,967,481) and $50,868,630, respectively, and there was
change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) of $20,210,363 and $(43,406,957) on
Collateralized Swaps, respectively, with UBS AG and Credit Suisse International which is
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Global Select Carry Strategy Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term
cash flows. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and the period ended December 31, 2023, the
Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through April 29, 2025, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be issued. Effective January 1, 2025
through April 29, 2025, there were subscriptions of $4,324,426 and repurchases of $48,825,252.
There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2024 2023
7 170,000 24,237 185,000 26,375
9(a) 864 123 864 123
6 1,955,991 278,866 2,249,019 320,643
2,126,855 303,226 2,434,883 347,141
9(b) 23,303 3,322 16,752 2,388
- - 428,396 61,076
4,339 619 6,436 918
27,642 3,941 451,584 64,382
2,099,213 299,285 1,983,299 282,759
8 735,000 104,789 735,000 104,789
1,364,213 194,496 1,248,299 177,970
2,099,213 299,285 1,983,299 282,759

Nicolas Henri Jean Papavoine
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mates 2024 2023
UsD UsD
REVENUE
Management fee income 4 170,000 185,000
Other incomes 4 652,322 60. 009
232322 245,009
EXPENSES
Audit fee 4340 6,390
Directors’ fee S(c) 107 053 108,643
Other expenses 5015 48
TOTAL EXPENSES 116,408 115081
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115,914 120,928
Tax expense 5 = -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 115,914 120,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
usD uso
ASSETS
Management fee receivable 7 170,000 185,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary 8(a) 864 864
Cash and cash eguivalents <] 1,965,081 2,249,018
Total assets 2,126,855 2,434 BB3
LIABILITIES
Amount due to an immediate holding company 8(b) 23,303 16,752
Directors’ fee payable - 428,396
Accruals 4,339 6,436
Total liabilities 27,642 451,584
NET ASSETS 2,099,213 1,983,299
EQUITY
Share capital B 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 1,364,213 1,248,288
Total equity 2,089,213 1,983,299

Micolas Hgfiri Jean Fapavoine
Direct

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of these financial statements.
4
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IM EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Share Retained

capital profits Total

uspo usD Uso

At 1 January 2023 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 129,928 129,928

At 31 Decemnber 2023 and 1 January 2024 735,000 1,248,293 1,983,299
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 115.914 115,914

At 31 December 2024 735,000 1,364,213 2,088,213
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Gability)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mote 2024 2023
usD usD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 115914 129928
Adjustments for:
Interest income (62,436} 160,034)
53,478 CERER
Decrease in management fee recenvable 15,000 20,000
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an immediate
holding company 6,551 {313,301}
{Decrease)/ increase in directors” fee payable (428,398) 428 396
Decrease in accruals {2.087) (37}
Cash (used in)generated from operating aclivities (355, 464) 204 952
Interest income received 62,436 0034
Met cash flows (used in)fgensrated
from operating activities (293.028) 264 986
NET ([DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (293,028) 264 986
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,249 018 1,984,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,955,991 2.249.019
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 6 1,853,981 2,248 018

The accompanying note form an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

g CORPORATE INFORMATION

UBS Management {(Cayman) Limited (the “*Company’) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 January 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands. The Company's registered office is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104,
Cayman Islands.

The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts.

on 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeading by
operation of Swiss law o all assels and liabilities of Credit Suisse Group AG, and became
the direct or indirect shareholder of all of the former drect and indirect subsidiaries of Credit
Suisse Group AG (the “Transaction”). The Company was one of the indirect subsidiaries of
Credit Suisse Group AG included in this Transaction,

Upeon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Credit Suisse share
converted ta the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse
depository in the case of Credit Suisse American depository shares, the merger
consideration consisting of /22428 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Suisse
shareholders received 5.1% of the cutstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition
date, with a purchase price of USD3.7 billion,

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBES Group AG approved the merger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG, and bath entities entered into a definitive merger agreement, The
merger is completed on 31 May 2024,

On 1 March 2024, the Beard of Directors has approved to change the name from Credit
Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

The ultimate holding company is UBS Group AG, & company incorporated in Switzerdand.
The directors regarded Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited as the immediate holding
company and UBS AG as the intermediate holding company.

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by Intermnational Accounting Standards Beard ("|ASE’). These
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for inanciel assets
and liabilities held at fair value through profit o loss, which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to meke judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of poficies and reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses, The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and liablities that are
mot readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars ("USD™) and all values are
rounded tothe nearest USD, except where otherwise indicated.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in order of liquidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items.

Certain prior pericd comparative figures are reclassified to conform with current vear
presentation.

22  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting principles adopted in the current period are consistent with those of the prior
year, There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the current financial period that have a material impact on the Company.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2024 in these financial satements. Among the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards,
the following is expected to be relevant to the Company's financial statements upon
becoming effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the 1ASE issued IFRS 18, which replaces 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stafernents. IFRS 18 intreduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Furtthermore, entities are required to
classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss inte one of five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial informalion based on the identified ‘roles’ of the pimary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes,

In addition, narow-scope amendments have been made (o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under
the indirect method, from 'profit or loss” o ‘operating profit o |oss' and remowving the
optionality around classification of cash flews from dividends and interest, In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards, IFRS 18, and the amendments
tothe other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.

The Company is currentty working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the
primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to |1AS 21

In August 2023, the |ASE issued amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foregn
Exchange Rates to specify how an enfity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency
affects, or is expected toaffect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash
flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025, Early adoption is permitted. but will need to be disclosed, When applying the
amendments, an entity cannol restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if;
a) The party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person.
il has contrad or joint control over the Company,
i) has significant influence over the Company; or
i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company;

b} The party is an entity where any of the following condition applies:

i} the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

ii) one entity is an associate or joint ventures of the ather entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

ilij} the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same third parly,

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and cther entity is an associate of the
third entity;

v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of empioyees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company,

wi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

vii) a person identified in (a)ii) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
ofthe key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

wiii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pard, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the
Company,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posttion comprise cash on hand and
at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
meonths that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short- berm cash commitments.

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, and shaor-term depeosits, as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9. the Company classifies its financial assets and financial
[iabilities at initial recognition into the categories of inancial assets and financial liabilities
discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset of financial liability is considered to be

held for trading if;

{a)lt is acquired or mcurmred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near tem, or

(b)Cn initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattermn of short-
term profit-taking, or

(chlit is a derivative (edcept for a dervative that is a financial guarantes contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrurment)

Financial assels

The Company classifies its financial assets as subseguently measured at amortised cost
or measured at FWVPL on the basis of both:

+ The entity's business model for managing the financial assets

+ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business rmodel
whose chjective is to hold financial assets in order o collect contractual cash flows and
its contraciual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soledy payments
of principal and interest ("SPPI") an the principal amount cutstanding. The Company
includes in this category shod-term non-financing receiables.

ancial assets measired al fair va hrough profit or lass CFVP

Afinancial assel is measured at FWPL if:

(a)lts contractual terms do not give nise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPFI
on the principal amount cutstanding; o

(L)t is not held within a business model whose objective is either (o collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

{chAL initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FWYPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would ctherwise arise from measuring assels or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.

10
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
(i} Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial abilities measured at FVPL

A financial Bability is measured at FVPL if it mests the definition of held for trading or is
designated as measured at FWPL upon initial recognition.

Financial labilities measured at amortised cost
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FAVPL, The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term payables.

(il) Recognition
The Coempany recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date. i.e., the date that the Company commis to purchase
or sell the assel,

(iii} Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial hiabilties at far value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments
are recognised directly in profit o loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial babiliies (other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus amy directly attributable
incremental costs of acguisition or issue.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures fimancial instruments which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss at fair value, Subsequent changes in the
fair value of those financial instruments are recorded in net gains of losses on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest and dividends earned or paid on these instruments are
recorded separately in interest income or expense and dividend income or expense in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair value through profit of loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments
cost are derecognised of impaired, as well as through the amaortisation process.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Subsequent measurement (continuad)

The effective interest method ("EIR™) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financal asset o a financial liabilty and of allocating the interest income of interest
expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument o, when appropriate, a shorter year to the net carndng amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates cash flows considering all contractusl terms of the financial
instruments. but does not consider expected credit losses ("ECL"). The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and all other premiums of discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A, financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass through” arangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assat.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered inte & “pass-through" arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset,
the assel is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The fransferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on & basis that reflects the rights and
cbligations that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company holds only short-termn receivables with no financing component and which
have maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply
an approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses ("ECL™) under IFRS
9 to all its receivables. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. but
instead, recoanises a [oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted cutcome, the time value of
meney and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effert at the reporting date about past events, curent conditions and forecasts of fulure
economic conditions.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLS on
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of recelvables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision malrix is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adusted for forward-
looking estimates.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures s investment in financial instruments at fair value at each repoding
dale,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
of transfer the liability takes place either in the princpal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tothe Company.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based
on their market gqucted price within the bidfask price or broker quatations which could be
indicative prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. Secunties defined in these
accounts as listed’ are traded in an active market,

For all other financial instrurments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation
technigues include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market fransactions
adusied as necessary and reference tothe current market value of ancther instrument that
is substantially the same) and the income appreach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and
oplion pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as
possible).
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 - Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
wvalue measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing the categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the beginning of each reporting peried,

Erovisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future cutfiow of rescurces will be required to
settle the ocbligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting perod of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the chligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

MILIE F iti
Reveniue from confracts with clients
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entiled in exchange for those goods or services,

(a) Management fee
Management fee income is recognised over time because the customer simultanecusly
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
apphing the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial insirument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net camying
amount of the financial asset,

i ional
These financial statements are presented in United States dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of
the reporting unit at the spat exchange rate on the date of the transadtion. At the end of the
reporting pericd, all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated to the functional currency using the closing exchange rate. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary tems are recognised in profit or loss.

Meon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary
iterns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was measured The gain or loss arising on franslation of a
non-manetary iterm measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the item.

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.

4. REVEMUE AND OTHER INCOMES

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of frusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts. Total revenue and other income recognised during the year

are as follows:
2024
ush

Revenue:
Management fee income

2023
usD

170,000 185.000

Other incomes include the following:

Bank interest income 62 436 60,034
Foreign exchange differences, net (114} (25)
52,322 60,009

The performance cbligation for management fee income is satisfied over lime as sernvices

are rendered,

a TAXATION

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempling it from all
local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of 20 vears from 10 October 2015,

Accordingly, no provision for income faxes is included in these financial statements,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALIENTS

2024 2023
UsD UsD
Cash at bank 1,955,991 2.249.019

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The camying
amount of the cash at bank approximate to their fair values.

T MANAGEMEMNT FEE RECEIVAELES

2024 2023
uso usD
Management fed receivables 170,000 185000

Meone of the above assets is either past due or impaired, The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default,

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
UsD usD
Izsued and fully paid:
735000 (2023: 735,000) ordinary shares
of USD1 (2023 USD1) each 735,000 735.000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied torecenve dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ondinary
shares rank egqually with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company’s primary cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concermn so that it can continue to provide retumns to
shareholders, by pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and pdlicies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group’s capital management objectives. The Company defines
“capital” as including all components of equity,

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs, Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company of the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Comparny.

The Company was not sublect to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
period,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considerad to be related if cne party has the ability to contrd the cther party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Qutstanding balances with related partles
The Company has the following cutstanding balances due fromfitc) related companies as at

the end of reporing period:
Moles 2024 2023
usD usD
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary {a) 864 564
Amount due to an immediate holding company (B (23.303) {16,752)

(&) The amount due from a fellow subsidiary represents expenses paid by the Company on
behalf of Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited. It is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

(by The amount due to an immediate holding company represents expenses paid by Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited on behalf of the Company. It is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Transactions with related parties
Except as disdosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had the following matenal transactions with related paries:

Motes 2024 2023
uso usD

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Company ic) 107,053 108,643

{c) The details of the remuneration of the directors, being the key management personnel
defined as a related party of the Company
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's investing activities expose it bo various types of risk that are asscciated with
the financial instrumenis and markets in which it invests. The most impotdant types of
financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit and counterparty risk
and Bquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
directors oversee the management of these risks.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of reporting period
and the risk management palicies empleyed by the Company are discussed below.

(&) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainty conceming moverments in market
prices and rates, including cbservable variables such as interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and others that may be only indirectly observable such as volatilities
and correlations. Market risk includes such factors as changes in economic
emnvironment, consumption pattern and investors' expectation etc. which may have
significant impact on the value of the investments. Market moverment may therefore
result in substantial fluctuation in the financial posifion of the Company,

Foreign cumency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Since the Hong
Kong Dollars is pegged to the USD, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of the invoices and expenses denominated in USD is considered to be
minimal,

Interest rale risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank
interest on cash at bank. At 31 December 2024 and 2023, a change in interest rates
would have no direct material effect on the carnying value of the recognised assets or
lizbalities of the Company.

(by Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nsk of loss resulting from client o counterparty
default and arises on credit exposure in all forms, including seftlement risk. The
Company's credit and counterparty risk is primarily atiributable (o cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from related companies. The Company's management
regularly menitors the credit and counterparty risk of all the financial assets. It is
considered that they are not past due or impaired for each of the reporting dates under
review. Mone of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

The directors considered the credit and counterparty risk as minimal since the
Company's clients are the Company's related companies.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(¢)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities. The Company's strategy is to
minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the Company's liquid capital from
tirne to time and by obtaining funds from parfners whene necessary,

The follewing table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financal liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within one year equal their
carrying amaounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant, The table alse analyses
the maturity profile of the Company's finandal assets {undiscounted where appropriate)
in order to provide a complete view of the Company's confractual commitments and
liquidity.

Financial liabilities
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the
ameunt is paid, the liability is allocated tothe earliest period in which the Company can
be reguired to pay.

Financial agsels

The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pericd from the end of
the reporting pericd to the contractual maturity dake or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

On Less than 12 M
demand 3 months manths maturity Total
LD ush uso Ush usp
31 Decermber 2024
Financial labiltes
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 22303 - - - 22 303
22,303 - - = 22,303
On Less than Itei2 Mo
demand 3 months months maturity Total
LD uso uso UsD usD
31 December 2023
Financial liabiltms
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 16.752 . . . 16,752
Directors’ fee
payable 428,396 = - - 428,356
445,148 - - - 445 148
19
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11.

UMCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company considers itself the sponsor of 2 structured entity when either its name appears
in the name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation
from the market that the Company is associated with the structured entity o the Company
was involved in the design or set up of the structured enfity and has a form of involvement
with the structured entity.

The below unconsclidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed
annual management fee of USDS5,000 (2023: USDS,000) each is received but no interest is
held by the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Frincipal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Triple Premiumn Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)®

US Preferred REIT Income Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

MEMNMYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instituticnal Investors Cnly)*

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Inwestors Cnly)®
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund {For Qualified Institutional Imvestors Cnly)

Daiwa Brazitian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Missay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onbky)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Insttutional
Investors Only)

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsel World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund*

Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

FIMCC Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

SBI PICTET Asia Hi-Tech \Venture Fund

AUD Shart Term Bond Fund

Insight Alpha

US Dynamic Growth

Fremium Camy Strategy Fund

BSMD Glcbal Advantage

Draiwa Wil Ventures lll, L.P. Fund

Japan Equity Premium Strategy Fund

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds were terminated during 2024,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11, UNCOMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsdidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently hawve the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that is not contractually required to provide.

12, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
an 21 May 2025,
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(Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2025 100 4,257

2022 11

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

2024 12 10
6,000 1,511 2,420

1940
206(4)-2(d)(6)

UBS

2024 12 449

JSDA

JSDA

2024 12 875 5,000
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(UBS AG, London Branch)

2024 12 386 550 3,202
1978 28
1997 12 1998
29 1862 1872
CHE-101.329.561
Aktiengesellschaft
NYSE
NYSE
UBS UBS 100
4
&
UBS
1998
BR0O04507
EC2M  2QS

(Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

UBS
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Global Select Carry Strategy Fund (the "Series Trust™), a
series trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the "Master Trust'), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net
assets attributable to holder of units, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (*'IFRS Accounting Standards™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors " Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA Code'™) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trusts
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trusts financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)
Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trusts internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trusts ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

April 29, 2025
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Independent auditor ®s report
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (““IASB”~).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code') issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
21 May 2025
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